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UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

Vs.

ORELBIS GONZALEZ,

Defendant.

/

INDICTM ENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At al1 tim es relevant to this lndictm ent:

The M edicare Prouram

The Medicare Program (''Medicare'') was a federal program that provided free or

below-cost health care benefits to certain individuals, prim arily the elderly, blind, and disabled.

Medicare was administered by the Centersfor Medicare and Medicaid Services C:CMS''), a

federal agency under the United States Department of Health and Human Services ('tHHS'').

Individuals who received benefits under M edicare were comm only referred to as M edicare

''beneficiaries.''

The M edicare program was divided into different ''parts.'' Part D of M edicare

subsidized the costs of prescription drugs for M edicare beneficiaries in the United States. lt was
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enacted as pa14 of the M edicare Prescription Dnzg, Improvement, and M odemization Act of 2003

and w ent into effect on January 1, 2006.

In order to receive Part D benefits, a beneticiary had to be enrolled in a M edicare

prescription drug plan. However,the Limited lncome Newly Eligible Transition (''L1NET'')

program provided tem porary coverage to certain low-income individuals who were newly eligible

for M edicare Pal4 D benefits. The LINET program  provided M edicare Part D coverage until

LINET enrolled beneficiaries selected or were assigned a M edicare Part D prescription drug plan.

A beneficiary enrolled in M edicare's LINET program could fill a prescription at a phannacy and

use the LINET program to pay for som e or all of the costs of the prescription.

4. The LINET program was operated by Humana on behalf of CM S. All LINET

claims submitted were processed by Hum ana. A phannacy did not have to have a contrad with

Hum ana in order to subm it LINET claim s and receive reimbursem ent from  the LINET program .

W hen a beneficiary who was eligible for participation or enrolled in the LINET program

presented a prescription to a phannacy, the pharmacy subm itted the LINET claim to Hum ana on

behalf of the benetkiary. If Humana then determined that the pharmacy was entitled to payment

based upon the claim, LINET made payments through its phannacy benefit manager (''PBM''),

Argus, directly to the pharm acy.

To obtain payment from  the LINET program , pharm acies typically subm itted

LINET claim s electronically via the internet. The claim required certain important information,

including: (a) the beneficial-y's name and HICN or other identification number', (b) a description

of the health care benetit, item, or service that was pl-ovided or supplied to the benetkiary; (Q

the billing codes for the benetit, item, or service; (d) the date upon which the benefit, item, or

selwice was provided or supplied to the beneficiary', and (e) the name of the referring physician
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or other health care provider, as well as a unique identifying num ber, known either as the Unique

Physician ldentitkation Number CCUPlN''I or National Provider ldentifier (ttNP1'').

W hen a pharm acy subm itted an LINET claim to Hum ana, the pharm acy certified

that the contents of the LINET claim were true, correct, com plete, and that the LINET claim was

prepared in compliance with the laws and regulations governing the M edicare program . The

subm itting pharm acy also certified that the prescription drugs being billed were prescribed and

were in fact provided as billed.

M edicare and the LINET program were health care benefit program s, as detined

by Title 18, United States Code, Section 24(b).

M edicare Druz Plan Sponsors

Humana lnsurance Company (t<Humana''), the LINET program, and Argus were,

among others, M edicare drug plan sponsors.

The Defendant and Related Entitv

Universal Phannacy Group Inc. (ççuniversal'') was a Florida coporation, located

at 3526 W  Flagler Street, M iam i, Florida 33135, incorporated on or about Decem ber 20, 2013,

that did business in M iami-Dade County and purportedlyprovided prescription drugs to M edicare

beneficiaries.

ORELBIS GONZALEZ was a resident of M iam i-Dade County, and the President

and Registered Agent of Universal from in or around June 22, 2015, to in or around December 8,

2015.

COUNT 1

Conspiracy to Com mit HeaIth Care Fraud and W ire Fraud

(18 U.S.C. j 1349)

The General Allegations section of this lndictm ent is re-alleged and incorporated
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by reference as if fully set forth herein.

From in or around June 2015, through in or around September 2015, in M iami-

Dade County, in the Southel'n District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,

O RELBIS GONZALEZ,

did knowingly, that is, with the intent to further the objects of the conspiracy, and willfully

combine, conspire, confederate and agree with others, known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to

comm it offenses against the United States, that is:

to knowingly and willfully execute and attempt to execute a schem e and artifice to

defraud a health care benefit prop-am affecting commerce, as defined in Title 18, United States

Code, Section 24(b), that is, Medicare, Humana, the LINET program, and Argus, and to obtain,

by means of m aterially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and prom ises, m oney and

property owned by, and under the custody and control of, said health care benefit program s, in

connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, item s, and services, in

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347,' and

to knowingly and with the intent to defraud, devise and intend to devise a scheme and

artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and property by means of materially false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing the pretenses, representations, and

promises were false and fraudulent when made, and for the purpose of executing the schem e and

artifice, did knowingly transmit and cause to be transm itted by m eans of wire com munication in

interstate and foreign comm erce, certain writings, signs, signals, pictures and sounds, in violation

of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.

Purpose of the Conspiracv

lt was a purpose of the conspiracy for the defendant and his co-conspirators to
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unlawfully enrich themselves by, among other things: (a) submitting and causing the submission

of false and fraudulent claims to health care benefit programs; (b) coneealing the submission of

false and fraudulent claims to health care benetit programs; (c) concealing the receipt of the fraud

proceeds', and (d) diverting the fraud proceeds for their personal use and benefit, the use and

benefit of others, and to further the fraud.

M anner and M eans of the Conspiracv

The manner and mneans by which the defendant and his co-conspirators sought to

accomplish the objects and purpose of the conspiracy included, among others, the following:

ORELBIS GONZALEZ subm itted and caused the subm ission of claim s, via

interstate wires, totaling approximately $41 1,760, which falsely and fraudulently represented that

various health care benefits, primarily prescription dnlgs, were m edically necessary, presclibed by

a doctor, and had been provided by Universal to M edicare beneficiaries.

As a result of such false and fraudulent claim s, the LINET program, through

Hum ana and Argus, made pam ents funded by the M edicare Part D Program to Universal in the

approximate amount of $354,979.

ORELBIS GONZALEZ, and others used the proceeds of the health care fraud for

their personal use and benefit, and to further the fraud.

Al1 in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349.

COUNTS 2-5

HeaIth Care Fraud

(18 U.S.C. j 1347)

The General Allegations section of this lndictm ent is re-alleged and incorporated

by reference as if fully set forth herein.

From in or around June 2015, through in or around September 2015, in M iam i-
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Dade County, in the Southel'n District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,

ORELBIS GONZALEZ,

in connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, item s, and services, did

knowingly and willfully execute, and attempt to execute, a schem e and artifice to defraud a health

care benefit program affecting comm erce, as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section

24(b), that is, Medicare, the LINET program, Humana, and Argus, and to obtain, by means of

m aterially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and prom ises, m oney and property

owned by, and under the custody and control of said health care benefit program .

Purpose of the Schem e and Artifice

lt was a purpose of the scheme and artifice for the defendant and his accomplices

to unlawfully emich themselves by, among other things: (a) submitting and causing the

submission of false and fraudulent claims to health care benefit programs; (b) concealing the

submission of false and fraudulent claims to health care benefit programs; (c) concealing the

receipt of the fraud proceeds; and (d) diverting the fraud proceeds for their personal use and

benefit, the use and benefit of others, and to further the fraud.

The M anner and M eans of the Schem e and Artifice

The M anner and M eans of the Conspiracy section of Count 1 of this Indictm ent is

re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein as a description of the

scheme and artifice.

A cts in Execution or Attem pted Execution of the Schem e and Artifice

On or about the dates set forth below, in M iami-Dade County, in the Southern

District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant, in connection with the delivery of and paym ent

for health care benefits, item s, and services, did knowingly and willfully execute, and attempt to
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execute, the above-described schem e and artitice to defraud a health care benefit program affecting

commerce, that is, M edicare, Hum ana, the LINET program , and Argus, to obtain, by means of

m aterially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and prom ises, m oney and property

owned by, and under the custody and control of, said health care benefit program s, in that the

defendant submitted and caused the subm ission of false and fraudulent claim s seeking the

identitied dollar am ounts, and representing that the phannacies provided pharmaceutical item s and

services to M edicare beneficiaries pursuant to a physician's valid orders and prescriptions:

Count M edicare Approxim ate Claim Num ber ltem  Claim ed; Approx.

Beneficiary Date of Claim A mount Claim ed

2 L.H. 06/21/2015 47785616596 lsentress; $1288

3 M .B. 06/21/2015 47785616695 Reyataz; $1306

4 W .W . 06/21/2015 47785616787 Fuzeon; $2500

5 E.A. 09/16/2015 49357698624 Gilenya; $2000

ln violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 2.

COUNT 6

Conspiracy to Com mit M oney Laundering

(18 U.S.C. j 1956(h))

The General Allegations section of this Indictment is re-alleged and incorporated

by reference as if fully set forth herein.

From in or around June 2015, through in or around September 2015, in M iami-

Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,

O RELBIS G ONZALEZ

did willfully, that is, with the intent to further the object of the conspiracy, and knowingly combine,

conspire, confederate, and agree with others, known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to comm it
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certain offenses against the United States, that is, to knowingly conduct a financial transaction

affecting interstate and foreign com merce, which involved the proceeds of specified unlawful

activity, knowing that the property involved in the tinancial transaction represented the proceeds of

som e form of unlawful activity, and knowing that the transaction was designed, in whole or in part,

to conceal and disguise the nature, location, source, ownership, and control of the proceeds of

specified unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(a)(1)(B)(i).

lt is further alleged that the specified unlawful activity is health care fraud and

conspiracy to comm it health care fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347

and 1349.

Al1 in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(h).

COUNTS 7-10

M oney Laundering

(18 U.S.C. j 1956(a)(1)(B)(i))

The General Allegations section of this Indictm ent is re-alleged and incorporated

by reference as through fully set fol'th herein.

On or about the dates set forth below, in M iam i-Dade County, in the Southem

District of Florida, and elsewhere,the defendant, ORELBIS GO NZALEZ, did knowingly

conduct and attempt to conduct a financial transaction affecting interstate and foreign com merce,

which financial transaction involved the proceeds of specified unlawful activity, knowing that the

property involved in the financial transaction represented the proceeds of som e fonn of unlawful

activity, and knowing that such transaction was designed, in whole or in part, to conceal and

disguise the nature, location, source, ownership, and control of the proceeds of specitied unlawful

activity, as set forth below :
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Count Approxim ate Date Description of Financial Transaction

of Transaction

7 7/13/2015 he cashing of Universal Phannacy check No. 1 194,

rom Chase Bank account ending 0392, in the approxim ate

mount of $7,500
8 7/2 1/2015 he cashing of Universal Pharm acy check No. 3224, from

hase Bank account ending 0392, in the approximate am ount of

5,400

9 7/23/2015 he cashing of Universal Phanuacy check No. 3224, from

hase Balzk account ending 0392, in the approximate amount of

5,600

10 8/3/2015 he deposit of Universal Pharm acy cashier's check No.

551205704, from Universal Chase Bank account ending 4131,
'

n the approximate amount of $ 1 16,923, to Universal Phannacy,
Suntrust account endin 3152

lt is further alleged that the specified unlawful activity is health care fraud and

conspiracy to comm it health care fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347

and 1349.

ln violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)(B)(i) and 2.

FO RFEITURE

(18 U.S.C. j 982 (a)(1), (a)(7))

The allegations of this lndictm ent are re-alleged and incop orated by reference as

though fully set forth herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States of certain

property in which the defendant, ORELBIS G ONZALEZ, has an interest.

Upon conviction of any of the violations of Title l 8, United States Code, Section

1349, and Title 18, United States Code, Sedion 1 347, as alleged in Counts 1 through 5 of this

lndictm ent, the defendant shall forfeit to the United States all of his respective rights, titles, and

interests in any property, real or personal, that constitutes or is derived, directly or indirectly, from

gross proceeds traceable to the comm ission of such violation, pursuant to Title 18, United States

Code, Section 982(a)(7).
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Upon conviction of any of the violations of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1956, alleged in this lndictm ent, the defendant shall forfeit to the United States a11 of his respective

rights, titles, and interests in any property, real or personal, involved in such offense or any

property traceable to such property.

The property subject to forfeiture includes, but is not limited to, the sum of

$354,979.44 in United States cun-ency, which amount is equal to the gross proceeds traceable to

the com mission of the violations alleged in this lndictm ent, which the United States will seek as a

forfeiture moneyjudgment as pal4 of the defendant's sentence.

If the property described above as being subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act

or om ission of a defendant,

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with a third party;

has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

has been substantially dim inished in value; or

(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be subdivided

without difticulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 2 1 , United States Code, Section 853(p), to

seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendant up to the value of the above forfeitable

property and, in addition, to seek a court order requiring the defendant to return any such property

to the jurisdiction of the court for seizure and forfeiture.
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All pursuant to Title l 8, United States Code, Section 982(a)(7)', and the procedures set

forth at Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, as made applicable by Title 18, United States

Code, Section 982(b)(1).

A TRUE PTT T

FOREPER

NBENJAM W  G
. GREENBERG

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

f CHRIST J. CLARK

ASS NT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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